
 

 

 

NORTH AREA COMMITTEE 
 

 
 

 
 

 
i 

 
AGENDA 

 

To:   City Councillors: Todd-Jones (Chair), Perry (Vice-Chair), Bird, Abbott, 
Austin, Gawthrope, O'Reilly, Price, Sarris, Sargeant, Smart and Tunnacliffe 
 
County Councillors: Manning, Onasanya, Sales and Scutt 
 

Dispatched: Wednesday, 7 December 2016 

  

Date: Thursday, 15 December 2016 

Time: 6.30 pm 

Venue: Chesterton Community College, Gilbert Road, Cambridge CB4 3NY 

Contact:  Toni Birkin Direct Dial:  01223 457013 
 

Timings are included for guidance only and cannot be guaranteed 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1   Apologies for Absence   

2   Welcome and Introduction (including Declarations of 
Interest)  

 

 

‘YOU SAID, WE DID, YOU WANT TO KNOW’ 

  

3   To Confirm What was Said (Minutes) at the Last Meeting 
and What we Have Done (Action List) (Pages 5 - 22) 

 

 

You are warmly invited to join North Area Committee for 
Mince Pies and non-alcoholic Mulled Wine during the 
Intermission. 

You are warmly join North Area Committee for Mince Pies 
and non-alcoholic Mulled Wine during the Intermission  

Public Document Pack



 
ii 

COMMUNITY FORUM – JOIN IN THE DISCUSSION ABOUT THESE ITEMS 

  

4   You Want to Know (Open Forum)  6:45PM 

 

ITEMS FOR DECISION 

  

5   Policing & Safer Neighbourhoods (Pages 23 - 34) 7:15PM 

 

INTERMISSION 

  

6   Environmental Reports (Pages 35 - 56) 8:15PM 

7   Environmental Improvement Programme (Pages 57 - 68) 8:45PM 

8    North Area Committee Dates for 2017/18  9:15PM 

 The Committee is asked to agree the following dates for the municipal year 
2017/18: 
 
22 June 2017 
14 September 2017 
14 December 2017 
1 March 2018 

9   Community Events and Consultation Opportunities 
(Pages 69 - 70) 

 



 
iii 

Meeting Information 
 

Open Forum Members of the public are invited to ask any 
question, or make a statement on any matter 
related to their local area covered by the City 
Council Wards for this Area Committee. The 
Forum will last up to 30 minutes, but may be 
extended at the Chair’s discretion. The Chair may 
also time limit speakers to ensure as many are 
accommodated as practicable. 
 

 

Filming, recording 
and photography 

The Council is committed to being open and 
transparent in the way it conducts its decision 
making. The public may record (e.g. film, audio, 
tweet, blog) meetings which are open to the 
public.  
 

 

Facilities for 
disabled people 

Level access is available at all Area Committee 
Venues. 
 
A loop system is available on request.  
 
Meeting papers are available in large print and 
other formats on request prior to the meeting. 
 
For further assistance please contact Democratic 
Services on 01223 457013 or 
democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk. 
 

 

Queries on 
reports 

If you have a question or query regarding a 
committee report please contact the officer listed 
at the end of relevant report or Democratic 
Services on 01223 457013 or 
democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk. 
 

 

General 
Information 

Information regarding committees, councilors and 
the democratic process is available at 
http://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/  
 

 

Mod.Gov App You can get committee agenda and reports for 
your tablet by using the mod.gov app 

 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



North Area Committee NAC/1 Thursday, 15 September 2016 

 

 
 
 

1 

NORTH AREA COMMITTEE 15 September 2016 
 6.30  - 9.30 pm 
 
Present:  Councillors Todd-Jones (Chair), Perry (Vice-Chair), Bird, Abbott, 
Austin, Price, Sargeant, Smart, Manning, Onasanya and Scutt 
 
 
Officers Present 
Steph Burwitz: Senior Support Worker with the Children & Young People's 
Participation Service 
Wendy Young: Operations Manager – Community Engagement and 
Enforcement 
Head of Customer Services: Jonathan James 
Committee Manager: Toni Birkin 
 
Also Present:  
Chief Inspector Ormerod 
Mike Davies: Cambridgeshire County Council Project Officer 
Noel Kavanagh: Chair Local Liaison Forum, Chisholm Trail and Abbey – 
Chesterton Bridge.  
Sara Garnham: Chair, Cambridge live Trust Board 
Steve Bagnall: Cambridge Live Trust 
Matt Deacon: Cambridge Live Trust 
 

FOR THE INFORMATION OF THE COUNCIL 

 

16/35/NAC Apologies for Absence 
 
Apologies were received from Councillors: O’Reilly, Sarris, Gawthrope, 
Tunnacliffe and Sales.   

16/36/NAC Welcome and Introduction (including Declarations of Interest) 

16/37/NAC To Confirm What was Said (Minutes) at the Last Meeting and 
What we Have Done (Action List) 
 
The minutes of the meeting of the 9th June 2016 were agreed and signed as a 
correct record. 
 
The following updates to the action sheet were noted: 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



North Area Committee NAC/2 Thursday, 15 September 2016 

 

 
 
 

2 

15/17/NAC Cllr Manning: An update will be provided at the next meeting when 
the Police are present. 
 
15/46/NAC Q7 Cllr Todd-Jones: Highways officers have proposed removal of 
overhanging trees and resurfacing of path. It is suggested that work be carried 
out in the Autumn Half Term. 
 
16/30/NAC Q4 Cllr Scutt: This matter now rests with the City Deal Board. 
 
16/3-/NAC Q8 Cllr Sargeant: Due to right of way issues the gates will now be 
installed in an alternative location. 
 

16/38/NAC Officer Delegated Decision 
 
The Officer delegated decision regarding the Rowan Centre community 
facilities improvements was noted 

16/39/NAC Children and Young People Feedback 
 
The Committee received feedback from Steph Burwitz (Senior Support Worker 
with the Children & Young People's Participation Service) on a project that had 
taken place over the summer. 
 
The project had engaged young people to find out what they liked and disliked 
about their local play equipment and open spaces. Five young people attended 
the meeting to give their feedback. They comments included the following: 
 

 New play equipment was needed. 

 Existing equipment was in a poor state of repair. 

 More facilities needed for older children. 

 They felt that babies and toddlers got priority. 

 Disliked adult abuse of play space (smoking, discarded needles, 
discarded alcohol bottles and cans, dog faeces and adults taking over 
play spaces). 

 
The Committee thanked the young people for their comments and invited 
them, with the help of Steph Burwitz, to collate comments and to contact their 
local Ward Councillors if they had specific concerns. 
 

Page 6



North Area Committee NAC/3 Thursday, 15 September 2016 

 

 
 
 

3 

Councillor Austin stated that the Community Services Scrutiny Committee was 
considering play equipment and that more consultation with young people was 
needed. 

16/40/NAC Update on the New Police Operating Model Inspector 
Ormerod 
 
Chief Inspector Ormerod gave the Committee an update on the new structures 
for local policing. 

a. The force was now using a targetted approach to specific areas in 
Arbury, East Chesterton and King's Hedges which are seen as having 
high levels of crime and deprivation. 

b. Some plain clothes detectives are set to return to uniform to become part 
of a team targeting specific hotspots in Cambridge. 

c. A new team had been formed with 27 officers to focus on the new 
policing model. 

d. The new model would look at was what we actually needed to deliver 
policing more effectively and efficiently.  

e. The core neighbourhood policing teams had been bolstered with three 
additional sergeants, 18 constables and six PCSOs working in a new 
specific, high demand, area focused on prevention and the most 
persistent and high-risk criminals working with partner agencies. 

 
Chief Inspector Ormerod invited questions as follows: 
 
Q1 Councillor Price 
The changes are welcomed and might help address the concerns of 
young people about the misuse of play spaces. 
 
Q2. Councillor Sargeant 
Do the changes mean that some services are no longer being delivered? 
A. The new model allows existing resources to be used in a smarter way. 
 
Q3. Michael Bond  
Would the current specialist drug abuse teams remain in place? 
A. This would be part of the prevention work and would be a holistic approach. 
 
The Committee thanked the Chief Inspector for his time. 

16/41/NAC Update on Chisholm Trail and Abbey/Chesterton Bridge 
 

Page 7



North Area Committee NAC/4 Thursday, 15 September 2016 

 

 
 
 

4 

The Committee received an update from Mike Davies (Cambridgeshire County 
Council Project Officer) and Noel Kavanagh (Chair Local Liaison Forum 
regarding the Chisholm Trail / Abbey Chesterton Bridge.  
 
Mike Davies presented the following: 
 

a. Gave an overview of the history of the project. 
b. Stated that the agreed bridge design was a hybrid of the most popular 

elements of the three original designs. 
c. The bridge would be as close to the existing railway bridge as Network 

Rail would allow. 
d. Construction was expected to begin in the Spring of 2017 with a 

completion target of Spring 2018. 
e. The planning application would be discussed at a Development Control 

Forum on the 10th October and then at the Joint Development Control 
Forum in November. 

f. The bridge project linked to the Chisholm Trail project and the timeline 
for this was outlined. 

g. A phased approach was planned. 
h. Discussions were on-going with the City Deal Board. 
i. Issues needed careful consideration included: ecology, flood concerns, 

road closures required for the underpass, archaeological concerns and 
commons consent. 

 
Noel Kavanagh stated the following: 
 

a. The Local Liaison Forum had met twice. 
b. Interest in the project was growing. 
c. Public were supportive of the project and could see the benefits. 
d. Procurement was underway with six possible contractors. 
e. The contractor would need experience at delivering projects on sensitive 

sites. 
f. Some stretches of the proposed route were dependant on future 

development and work would be phased to accommodate this. 
 
Noel Kavanagh and Mike Davies invited questions for the Committee and 
members of the public. 
 
Q1. Member of the Public: Where can further information be found? 
A. Full detail can be found on the County Council website. 
 

Page 8



North Area Committee NAC/5 Thursday, 15 September 2016 

 

 
 
 

5 

Q2. Councillor Onasanya: Was closing Newmarket Road for a weekend 
long enough to allow for the installation of an underpass? 
A. The contractors had given an assurance that 24 hours was sufficient. 
However, a contingency plan would allowed slightly longer. 
 
Q3. Richard Taylor: The public had been promised clear information on 
the project page regarding key meetings, however, information was still 
hard to find. 
A. It was hoped that all dates would be on one calendar very soon. 
 
Q3. Leila Dockerill: The Leper Chapel is a sensitive site. Would the 
project cause any damage? 
A. Cambridge Past Present and Future had been fully engaged in the project. 
Trial holes would be bored soon. Sensitivity to this site would be part of the 
procurement brief. 
 
Councillor Manning stated that Cambridge Past Present and Future had 
praised the County Council for the level of consultation on the project. 
 
Q4. Michael Bond: The public had not been given sufficient notice 
regarding the Local Liaison Forum meeting and finding details on-line 
was difficult. 
A. Posters were displayed and 45 people attended the meeting. 

16/42/NAC You Want to Know (Open Forum) 
 
Q1. Barbara Taylor: Milton Road is in poor condition. There are pot 
holes in both the road and pavement surfaces. 
 
A.  Councillor Bird agreed that action was needed in this area. 
Councillor Scutt: The County Council has limited funds for resurfacing work. 
However, a request for funding was due to go to committee shortly. 
 

Action: Ward Councillors to work together to resolve the issues. 
 
Q2. Richard Taylor: City Deal Board discussions promised workshops 
regarding the trees on Milton Road. Some people have been informed of 
dates, other have not. When will they be made public and advertised on 
the website? 
 
A. Councillor Scutt: Dates for workshops to consider trees, landscape and 
verges, had now been agreed and would soon be publically available. There 

Page 9



North Area Committee NAC/6 Thursday, 15 September 2016 

 

 
 
 

6 

had been a delay in arranging the workshops as officers needed to ensure 
they had the correct expert guidance. The first workshop would be on the 20th 
September. Results would be feedback to the next Local Liaison Forum. 
 
Richard Taylor: The criterion for inviting attendees needs to be made 
public. 
 
A. Councillor Manning: Workshops should be open to the public. County 
Council officers had been asked to publish a central calendar of meeting 
dates. 
Councillor Scutt: Workshops were invitation only, as agreed by the Milton 
Road Local Liaison Forum.  
 
Q3. Traffic calming in Fen Road is not producing results. Vehicles 
continue to drive at speed and to use the pavements to avoid calming 
measures. 
 
A. Councillor Todd-Jones: This has been a Police priority in the past. 
 
A. Councillor Manning: Work was expected to start on improved traffic calming 
measures in the area in the next few weeks. Residents should expect 
disruption for the next eight weeks.  
 
Q4. How would Ward boundaries impact on the North Area? 
 
A. Councillor Price: There had been some changes to County Council 
boundaries. For the moment, City Council boundaries remained unchanged. 
Full details can be found on the County Councils website. 
https://consultation.lgbce.org.uk/node/4143 
 
Q5.  Arbury Road pavements are in poor condition. Can they be 
repaired? 
 
A. Councillor Scutt: Aware of the issues and would raise this as a priority. 
Footpaths across Cambridge are in need of repair but the County has limited 
funds. The City Deal Board is being encouraged to contribute.  

Action 
 

A. Councillor Onasanya: Will contact cycle teams about repairs to Arbury 
Road. 

Action 
 

Page 10



North Area Committee NAC/7 Thursday, 15 September 2016 

 

 
 
 

7 

Kay Harris suggested that the pot holes were the result of poor repairs to 
previous damage. 

16/43/NAC Environmental Reports 
 
The Committee received a report from the Community Engagement and 
Enforcement team. 
 

The report outlined an overview of City Council Refuse and Environment and 
Streets and Open Spaces service activity relating to the geographical area 
served by the North Area Committee.  The report identified the reactive and 
proactive service actions undertaken in the previous quarter, including the 
requested priority targets, and reported back on the recommended issues and 
associated actions. It also included key officer contacts for the reporting of 
waste and refuse and public realm issues.  
 
The following comments and suggestions were made regarding the report. 
 

a) A dog waste bin was needed near the Millennium footbridge.  
b) General waste bin near the Fort St George Bridge has been damaged 

and needs replacing. 
c) Recycling appears to be reducing. Can the next report include 

commentary?. Note (since the report the recycling figures have been 
reissued and no longer indicate a reduction).  

d) Rubbish has accumulated in hedges in East Chesterton and needs to be 
cleared. 

e) Students will shortly be moving into flats on Milton Road and a new shop 
will be opening. Can waste bins be added near these buildings? Cllr 
Scutt to liaise with Wendy regarding bins.  

  
The Operations Manager responded to questions about Ward Walkabouts. 
She invited suggestions for future walks. Councillors suggested that the walks 
should be promoted and publicised by North Area Committee. 
 
The Committee resolved unanimously to prioritise : 
 
Continue the following existing priorities: 
 

1. Enforcement joint working and patrols to deal with littering from students 
of Cambridge Regional College in the areas of Campkin Road and Nuns 
Way Recreation Ground and to work with the local businesses to 
address litter from their premises. 

Page 11



North Area Committee NAC/8 Thursday, 15 September 2016 

 

 
 
 

8 

 
2. Enforcement patrols to tackle fly tipping on communal archways and 

green areas at Minerva Way area (including Augustus Close, Hercules 
Close, Neptune Close and Apollo Way), Campkin Road, Arbury Court, 
Nicholson Way area (including Albemarle Way, Hanson Court and 
Walker Court)  and Maitland Avenue/ Mortlock Road area. 
 

3. Patrols to address dog fouling on King’s Hedges “Pulley” Recreation 
Ground, Nuns Way Recreation Ground and the areas of Blackberry Way 
and Lawrence Way including early mornings, evenings and weekends. 
 

4. Enforcement patrols to tackle littering issues from shops at Carlton 
Terrace, and deal with waste management issues. 
 

5. Enforcement patrols to deal with illegal camping at Logans Meadow, 
Pye’s Pitch and the Vie. 

16/44/NAC Cambridge Live: Where we are and What Next for City Events 
 
The Committee received a presentation from Sara Garnham, Matt Deacon and 
Steve Bagnall of Cambridge Live. The presentation covered the history, 
funding streams, governance structures and the range of events offered by 
Cambridge Live. 
 
Cambridge Live is a not-for-profit charity that runs the Cambridge Corn 
Exchange, Cambridge Folk Festival and also delivers a range of outdoor 
events on behalf of Cambridge City Council, including its annual Big Weekend, 
Bonfire Night and the Mayor’s Day Out. 
 
Cambridge Live were currently seeking feedback from local residents were 
urged to respond to the questionnaire (link below).  
 
https://www.cambridgelivetrust.co.uk/city-events/city-events-survey  
 
The Cambridge Live representatives responded to questions and comments 
as follows: 
 
Q1. Councillor Sargeant: Young people, particularly those in the North of 
Cambridge, feel that Cambridge Live events were not for them. How is 
this being addressed? 
 

Page 12



North Area Committee NAC/9 Thursday, 15 September 2016 

 

 
 
 

9 

A. The Team were aware of the challenges and were seeking to bring some 
events out to the wider community. Education and participation had grown 
over the last five years and was a priority for the future.   
 
Q2. Clare King: As an independent body Cambridge Live was now 
subject to less scrutiny of its governance. Board minutes appear to be 
very brief concerning the serious accident on Midsummer Common that 
occurred in November 2015. Subsequent actions were not reported. If 
this was discussed, where is the audit trail for the public to review? 
 
A. Sara Garnham: This would be included in the Annual Report to the City 
Council’s Community Service Scrutiny Committee. As a private company the 
Charity was under no obligation to publish it minutes. However, it chooses to 
publish a shortened form of its discussions. The matter was fully discussed. 
 
Cambridge Live’s AGM was open to the public, and minutes and accounts are 
available for public scrutiny. 
 
Michael Bond suggested that as a company limited by guarantee with 
charitable status, Cambridge Live was publically accountable. 
 
Q3. Councillor Smart: Agreed with Ms King that their needed to be more 
transparency about the Trust’s response to a serious incident. 
Suggested that this should have been mentioned in the presentation. 
 
A. The the matter could still be the subject of legal proceedings and no more 
could be said at present.  
 
Q4. Councillor Bird: Would the disabled children’s session of the 
Midsummer Fair continue? 
 
A. Yes. This is regarded as important. 
 
Q5. Member of the Public: Acoustics in the Corn Exchange are poor. Can 
anything be done to improve this?  
 
A. Steve Bagnall: Some people love the acoustics and some dislike it. Any 
improvement would require a significant investment. 
 
Q6. Councillor Manning: Are there any plans to measure the non-
financial success of the Trust such as health and wellbeing benefits? 
 

Page 13



North Area Committee NAC/10 Thursday, 15 September 2016 

 

 
 
 

10 

A. Sara Garnham: The Trust would widen its partnership working and would be 
rolling out future programmes with wider social goals. 

16/45/NAC Community Events and Consultation Opportunities 
 
The community page was noted. 
 
 
 

The meeting ended at 9.30 pm 
 
 
 
 

CHAIR 
 

Page 14



COMMITTEE ACTION SHEET 
 

Committee North Area Committee 

Date 15th September 2016 

Circulated 
on 

 

Updated on  

 

ACTION LEAD 
OFFICER/MEMBER 

TIMESCALE PROGRESS 

14/26/NAC - Tree roots 
opposite Co-op Green 
End Road causing trip 
hazard 

Councillor Manning  Update:  Additional tree has been added to the list for 
remedial work but the item is still on-going.    
Further update: given the cost and the fact that there is 
now an EIP in that area, and a project I have got added 
to the Northern Area Corridor Transport Plan pot, it will 
be done as part of one of these.  Officers have confirmed 
this won't affect either project (in terms of adding extra 
cost or stopping elements from being done). 
 
Update 5 Dec 14 Cllr Manning : Initial site visit 
completed and this matter will be included in a wider 
feasibility study of the area. 
 
Update 15 Dec 2014 Cllr Manning:  Work has been 
delayed but the issue is still ongoing.  
 
Update 20 Jan 2015 Cllr Manning: Feasibility study still 
being written. 
 
Update 9th April Cllr Manning 
A residents meeting had been held and a decision on 
future action is expected to be considered post-election. 

P
age 15



 
Update 14th August Cllr Manning 
Waiting for designs to be completed by SKANSA.  
 
Update 20th January Cllr Manning 
This matter is being address with other issues in the 
area.  
The action to be retained for further update 
 
Update 31 March Cllr Manning 
This matter was progressing along with the rest of the 
City Deal consultations. 
 
Update 9 June Cllr Manning 
City Deal meeting earlier today discussed this issue 
 

 
14/65/NAC 
 
Parking restriction in De 
Freville area and impact 
around Milton Rd 
Library  
 
 

 
Cllr Scutt 

  
18 December 2014, Cllr Scutt  
Regarding Parking Restrictions steps have been taken to 
place double yellow on the corners of all the inter 
sections Milton Road.  
County Council are appointing an Officer to look at 
parking in Cambridge and the problems that residents 
experience to determine safe parking.  
 
Would investigate the possibility of four hour parking 
restrictions in this area as requested by Mr Sergeant at 
the December meeting. 
 
3Feb 2015 Update Cllr Scutt  
From County Officers: 
With regards to Milton Road Library parking, whilst it 

P
age 16



would not be permissible to restrict a parking space 
solely for library use, the County can restrict the duration 
of stay to say one hour to prevent long term parking and 
introduce some turn-over of vehicles utilising the parking 
bay. 

This would involve an amendment to the traffic regulation 
order (TRO) and the installation of additional signage, so 
there would be a cost associated with this work which 
would need to be borne by a third party - that is residents 
or need to secure funding from alternative sources. 

 
Update 9th April Councillor Scutt 
Has discussed this with County Council Officers and 
options under are consideration including Pay and 
Display bays, 
 
Update 10th September Councillor Scutt 
County transport officers advised that it would not be 
possible to have dedicated parking bays for the library. 
Restricting parking to two hours in the area would require 
a Traffic Regulation Order and would include a wider 
area.  
Update 19th November Councillor Scutt 
Double yellow line work due to for early next year. 
 
Update 31st March Councillor Scutt 
Cllr Scutt stated that this issue was still on going, the 
Cambridge Joint Area committee was working on the 
issue of parking generally and she wanted a solution for 
the whole of Cambridge. 

P
age 17



Double yellow lines are in the queue, two new officers 
have been appointed and expect work will be done in due 
course. 
 

15/4/NAC Q2  
To investigate with 
property services: area 
around Tesco’s 
continues to be untidy. 
There is a large, 
uncovered, wire cage 
style litter bin, and 
rubbish gets blown 
about. 

Councillor Price   
Property Services are in the process of renewing the 
lease to Tesco and as part of this they will be leased an 
additional area at the rear of the shops where their cages 
are and will be erecting a simple store with flat roof 
(subject to landlord’s approval of the design and planning 
approval). Their cages will be installed in the area and 
this should be tidier and eliminate blown rubbish. The 
rear access road is just for Tesco and the takeaway for 
deliveries but not, longer term parking. The tenants are 
responsible to ensure the access is not blocked and 
control rubbish etc. We will pick up these issues with 
them. 
16 June 2015 
 
Retrospective planning application on-going. 
 
Update 10th September Councillor Price 
Councillor Price stated that work to improve was 
underway. He would push to have the double yellow lines 
in the area reinstated. 
 
Update 31 March Councillor Price 
The area had been re-surfaced recently and was waiting 
to hear when lines would be re-instated.  There had been 
no complaints about rubbish and wanted to retain until 
the lines had been re-instated. 
 

P
age 18



15/17/NAC 
Sharing ‘Open Data’ to 
assist with the setting of 
Area Committee Police 
Priorities 

Councillor Manning 
and Councillor 
Todd-Jones 

 Councillor Manning has agreed to take this forward and 
will be arranging a follow up meeting. 
Update Sept  
This will be discussed at the next meeting when the 
Police are present. 

16/04/NAC Q5 
Chesterton Recreation 
Ground toilets often 
locked: why? 
 

Councillor Manning 
undertook to raise 
with Councillor 
Johnson 

  

16/19/NAC 
Meadows Community 
Centre 

Jackie Hanson to 
have dialogue with 
Histon and 
Impington Parish 
Council with regards 
to Meadows 
Community Centre. 

 Update 9 June 
Cllr Todd-Jones undertook to investigate further. 

16/21/NAC Q1 
Adshel Bus Shelter 

Cllr Todd-Jones and 
John Richards to 
request that Adshel 
provide a 
replacement Bus 
Shelter. 

 Adshel/Clearchannel hoping to replace bus shelter with a 
refurbished shelter. 

16/30/NAC Q1 Councillor 
Onasanya 

 Investigate street lights in Callander Close. 
 
Post meeting update: 
The County Strategic Projects Officer has advised their 
street lighting faults database has been checked and they 
have not had any faults reported for this road since 
February 2015.  Balfour Beatty have also advised they do 
not have any outstanding customer issues at present. 
 

P
age 19



Update 30th Aug 2016 
Liaising with Paul Payne at Balfour Beatty to see what (if  
anything) can be done to eradicate the dark areas 
highlighted in the plan sent by the constituent. 
 
Update 20 September 2016  
Unfortunately we are unable to change the type of lantern 
which has been installed due to the specification 
requested by Cambridge county council. We understand 
that there will be areas with darker spots where lights 
have been removed due to the 10% reduction on 
residential roads. 
 
As there is no liable obligation for the council to provide 
any Streetlighting on residential roads this is 
unfortunately where the lights are being removed from. 
We will therefore not be making any changes to the 
lighting on Callander Close. 

16/43/NAC Q1 Ward Cllrs (City and 
County) to action 
together 

 Milton Road pavement and road surface in need of 
repair. 

16/43/NAC Q5 Cllr Scutt and Cllr 
Onasanya 

 Pavements to Arbury Road in poor state of repair. Raise 
as priority. 
Contact cycle team about this matter 

 
 
 

 

P
age 20



 
North Area Committee Future Agenda Plan 

 
 
Forthcoming Agenda items 
 

1. Highways – Operational Criteria and Maintenance 
2. Update on Major Planning Developments for Cambridge  
3. Cycling Related Issues including improvements to Cycle Paths Yellow Lines 

 
 
Future Updates 
 

1. S106 Transport Corridor  
 
 
 
Regular Updates requested 
 

1. City Council Tree Strategy. 
 

 
 

P
age 21



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Extract from Minute of meeting of 6th June 2016 

 

NAC Policing & Safer Neighbourhoods 
 
The Committee received a report from Sergeant Wragg regarding 
Policing and Safer Neighbourhood Trends. 
 
The report outlined actions taken since the North Area Committee of the 
20 January 2016. The current emerging issues/neighbourhood trends for 
each ward were also highlighted (see report for full details). 
 
Sarah Steggles, Anti-Social Behaviour Officer added an update for the 
City Council’s perspective. 
 
The Committee and members of the public asked the following question 
regarding the report: 
 
Q1. Do drivers get fined if caught speeding by roving speed units? 
 
A. Follow up action is taken. 
 
Q2. Is follow up action taken if drivers were caught by speed 
watch volunteers? 
 
A. Follow up letters can be sent. 
 
Q3. Neighbourhood Watch signs, which had incurred a charge to 
resident groups, had been removed during street lighting work.   
 
A. Councillor Scutt stated that this matter was under investigation with 
Balfour Beatty and suggested that Neighbourhood Watch co-
coordinators could contact Kate Waite at Parkside Police Station for 
more information. 
 
Q4.  Grumpy’s Corner, East Chesterton, continues to be an area of 
concern.  
 

Page 23

Agenda Item 5



A. Joint working with the shop keeper last year led to him installing his 
own camera monitoring the parking area in front of the shops.  This area 
could be added as a priority. 
 
Q5. Violent crime appeared to be on the increase. Why? 
 
A. There has been an increase in population in the area (Orchard Park 
and Growth of CRC). Also, recording methods had changed. 
 
Q6. Why is there no detailed information on domestic violence in 
the recorded statistics? 
 
A. It was not possible to break down the statistic into that much detail. 
 
The Committee resolved unanimously to prioritise: 
 

i. Continue with Class A drug work – this underpins much criminality 
and also impacts on community safety. 

ii. Monitor anti-social behaviour around Grumpy’s and the Fen Road 
area. 

16/33/NAC Environmental Reports - NAC 
 
The Committee received a report from the Community Engagement and 
Enforcement team. Community Enforcement officers were present to 
answer questions. 
 

The report outlined an overview of City Council Refuse and Environment 
and Streets and Open Spaces service activity relating to the 
geographical area served by the North Area Committee.  The report 
identified the reactive and proactive service actions undertaken in the 
previous quarter, including the requested priority targets, and reported 
back on the recommended issues and associated actions. It also 
included key officer contacts for the reporting of waste and refuse and 
public realm issues.  
 
The following were suggestions for Members on what action could be 
considered for priority within the North Area for the next quarter: 
 

 Continue to address litter left dropped on route from CRC to local 
shops 

 Continue to tackle fly tipping. 

 Investigate litter around Green End Road Co-op. 

Page 24



 Investigate fly tipping/litter around Elizabeth Way underpass. – this 
falls within the East area and will be monitored by the team 

 
The Committee resolved unanimously to prioritise: 
 
Continue the following existing priorities: 
 

i. Enforcement joint working and patrols to deal with littering from 
students of Cambridge Regional College in the areas of Campkin 
Road and Nuns Way Recreation Ground and to work with the local 
businesses to address litter from their premises. 

ii. Enforcement patrols to tackle fly tipping on communal archways 
and green areas at Minerva Way, Nuns Way, Campkin Road, 
Arbury Court, Nicholson Way and Maitland Avenue area. 

iii. Patrols to address dog fouling on Kings Hedges “Pulley” 
Recreation Ground, Nuns Way Recreation Ground and Arbury 
Town Park including early mornings, evenings and weekends. 

iv. Enforcement patrols to tackle littering issues from shops at Carlton 
Terrace, and deal with waste management issues. 

v. Enforcement patrols to tackle fly tipping and litter in the alleyway 
between Kinross Road to Pakenham Close. 

 
New Priority: 
 
vi. Monitor litter and fly tipping around Elizabeth Way underpass. 

 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

 

Neighbourhood profile update 
Cambridge City North 
Neighbourhood 
 
 
December 2016 
 

Nick Skipworth, Safer 
Neighbourhoods 
Inspector 
 
Lynda Kilkelly, Safer 
Communities Manager, 
Cambridge City Council 

Page 27



 2 

 
1 INTRODUCTION 2 
 Aim  

 Methodology  

2 CURRENT PRIORITIES 3 
3 PRO-ACTIVE WORK & EMERGING ISSUES 4 
4 ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 6 
 Current Crime & ASB Incident Levels by Ward  

5 RECOMMENDATIONS 7 

 

1 INTRODUCTION 

Aim 
The aim of the Neighbourhood profile update is to provide an overview of 
action taken since the last reporting period, identify ongoing and emerging 
crime and disorder issues, and provide recommendations for future priorities 
and activity in order to facilitate effective policing and partnership working in 
the area. 
 
The document should be used to inform multi-agency neighbourhood panel 
meetings and neighbourhood policing teams, so that issues can be identified, 
effectively prioritised and partnership problem solving activity undertaken. 

Methodology 
This document was produced using the following data sources: 
 Cambridgeshire Constabulary crime and anti-social behaviour (ASB) 

incident data for the six months of May 2016 to October 2016, compared 
to the previous six months (November 2015 to April 2016) and the same 
six months last year (May 2015 to October 2015); and 

 Information provided by the Safer Neighbourhood Policing team and the 
City Council’s Safer Communities team. 

Page 28



 3 

2 CURRENT PRIORITIES 
 
At the North Area Committee meeting of 09 June 2016, the committee 
recommended adopting the following priorities: 
 
 Continue with Class A drug work – this underpins much criminality and 

also impacts on community safety; and 
 Monitor anti-social behaviour around Grumpy’s and the Fen Road area. 
 
The Neighbourhood Action Group assigned the actions to be taken and the 
lead officers for each of the priorities. The tables below summarise the action 
taken and the current situation. 
 
Continue with Class A drug work – this underpins much criminality and 
also impacts on community safety 
Objective To continue to tackle the supply and use of Class A drugs 

within the North of the City 
Action 
Taken 

Work has continued to address the issue of drug supply within 
the North of Cambridge. The work carried out takes place 
based on intelligence gathered by the officers to target the 
most vulnerable people within our communities who allow their 
homes to be used to supply Class A drugs. 
 
The Partnership and Prevention teams have carried out a 
range of enforcement actions which has led to a number of 
people being charged with relevant offences regarding the sale 
of Class A drugs. A number of people are on bail to the police 
whilst enquires are completed. 
 
As well as the work to deal with the people who supply drugs, 
we continue to work with a wide number of agencies to support 
those people who are using and trying to stop using to make 
positive changes to their life. 

Current 
Situation 

This work continues to underpin the work carried out by the 
Partnership and Prevention teams within the North of the City 
and is targeted to protect the most vulnerable people within the 
City. 

Lead  
Officer 

Sergeant Kevin Misik, Cambridgeshire Constabulary 

 

Page 29



 4 

 
Monitor anti-social behaviour around Grumpy’s and the Fen Road area 
Objective To monitor and address issues of anti-social behaviour (ASB) 

around the area of Fen Road and ‘Grumpy’s Corner’ 
Action 
Taken 

There have been targeted patrols carried out by officers to deal 
with and deter the ASB which has been ongoing in the area. 
Officers have also been in regular contact with store owners on 
‘Grumpy’s Corner’. As well as high profile patrols, there has 
also been some enforcement action at an address which has 
been linked to the some of the ASB. This warrant led to the 
arrest of someone who is believed to have been linked to the 
supply of cannabis locally. This action has reduced a number 
of issues in the location. 
 
There continues to be reports of ASB along Fen Road. PCSOs 
Eaton and Austin continue to target their patrols in the area to 
both deter further offences and, were possible, deal with 
offenders. 

Current 
Situation 

Since the enforcement action, there has been a significant 
reduction in the reports of ASB 

Lead  
Officer 

Sergeant Kevin Misik, Cambridgeshire Constabulary 

 
3 PRO-ACTIVE WORK & EMERGING ISSUES 
 
Cambridgeshire Constabulary 
 
There has been an increase in reports of anti-social behaviour in the Darwin 
Drive and Akeman Street area of the City, which has in turn led to an 
increase in community concerns and tension around the issue. A number of 
different agencies are currently working in this area and, at this time, this is 
the main issue that the police are addressing in the North of Cambridge. 
 
Cambridge City Council 
 
Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB) officers in the Safer Communities team worked 
with colleagues in the police and 4 young people in the north of the city and 
asked them to sign up to Acceptable Behaviour Contracts (ABC) because of 
persistent nuisance and ASB. Another 4 existing ABC’s were reviewed and 
the young people had made satisfactory progress. 
 
The Safer Communities team continued to work to tackle nuisance and ASB 
across the north of the city and one resident signed a tenancy undertaking 
promising to abide by their tenancy conditions. The team also served two 

Page 30



 5 

Notices of Seeking Possession to council tenants where there had been 
persistent nuisance behaviour. 
 
ASB officers from the team delivered ASB workshops at the Victoria Project 
for clients looking to move to their own accommodation. They also did 
workshops for Year 4 students from schools across the city, including the 
north area. 
 
The Safer Communities team are working closely with the police and 
councillors to tackle crime and ASB in Akeman Street. The team have worked 
to secure the installation of the re-deployable CCTV camera for an extended 
period of time. They have carried out door knocking, leafleted the area and 
are exploring other avenues to look at long term solutions. 
 
The team has also been working to support the work going into dealing with 
nuisance and ASB around Grumpy’s Corner, as has been reported within the 
priorities section. 
 
The area around Hazelwood and Molewood Close is emerging as a hot spot 
for ASB. The Safer Communities team is liaising with City Homes and the 
police to identify addresses and individuals in order to take appropriate 
action. A professionals’ meeting is being arranged, to ensure a joint action 
plan is worked on. 
 

Page 31



6 
 

4 ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
 
CURRENT CRIME & ASB INCIDENT LEVELS BY WARD 
 
 

   

D
w

el
lin

g 
Bu

rg
la

ry
 

O
th

er
 

Bu
rg

la
ry

 

Vi
ol

en
t 

C
rim

e 

R
ob

be
ry

 

Th
ef

t o
f 

Ve
hi

cl
e 

Th
ef

t 
fro

m
 

Ve
hi

cl
e 

C
yc

le
 

Th
ef

t 

Th
ef

t 
fro

m
 

Sh
op

 

C
rim

in
al

 
D

am
ag

e 

O
th

er
 

C
rim

e TOTAL 
CRIME 

TOTAL 
ASB 

A
R

EA
 

City North 

May 16 – Oct 16 110 68 413 24 25 77 186 68 199 379 1549 763 

Nov 15 – Apr 16 83 34 307 11 13 87 105 63 159 313 1175 493 

May 15 – Oct 15 107 58 326 15 14 102 108 72 150 298 1250 601 

W
A

R
D

S 

Arbury 

May 16 – Oct 16 25 14 111 7 5 14 43 15 49 100 383 200 

Nov 15 – Apr 16 20 8 69 2 1 26 24 20 40 65 275 122 

May 15 – Oct 15 30 12 76 5 3 41 26 23 41 76 333 170 

East 
Chesterton 

May 16 – Oct 16 26 19 91 3 11 24 30 5 53 84 346 192 

Nov 15 – Apr 16 23 15 68 4 3 23 30 3 44 65 278 111 

May 15 – Oct 15 17 13 86 1 7 21 26 5 31 71 278 152 

King’s 
Hedges 

May 16 – Oct 16 28 14 129 8 4 26 22 36 63 113 443 204 

Nov 15 – Apr 16 25 3 121 3 7 19 11 31 50 82 352 154 

May 15 – Oct 15 18 13 122 5 1 25 17 39 44 86 370 183 

West 
Chesterton 

May 16 – Oct 16 31 21 82 6 5 13 91 12 34 82 377 167 

Nov 15 – Apr 16 15 8 49 2 2 19 40 9 25 101 270 106 

May 15 – Oct 15 42 20 42 4 3 15 39 5 34 65 269 96 

P
age 32



7 
 

 
5 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 Anti-social behaviour in the Darwin Drive / Akeman Street area. 

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



 
Page 1 of 22 

Environmental 
Report 
 
 
Cambridge North Area 
September to November 2016 
 

  

Page 35

Agenda Item 6



 
Page 2 of 22 

Contents 
 

1. Introduction ................................................................................................................................ 3 

2. Target setting and recommendations ......................................................................................... 3 

3. Routine activity ........................................................................................................................... 4 

4. Specific issues and actions ........................................................................................................ 5 

5. Environmental Data ................................................................................................................... 7 

Private Realm [North Area] ........................................................................................................... 7 

Public Realm Data ........................................................................................................................ 8 

Public Realm Enforcement [North Area] .................................................................................... 8 

Dog Warden Service [North Area] ............................................................................................ 10 

Operations cleansing data by ward [North Area] ...................................................................... 11 

Waste and Recycling Data [City wide] ..................................................................................... 13 

6. Proactive and community work ................................................................................................ 15 

7. Key contacts ............................................................................................................................ 16 

Officers........................................................................................................................................ 16 

Issues.......................................................................................................................................... 17 

8. Resources ................................................................................................................................ 18 

 

 

 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 36



 
Page 3 of 22 

1. Introduction 
 
This report provides an overview of City Council Refuse and Environment and Streets and Open 
Spaces service activity relating to the geographical area served by the North Area Committee.  
The report identifies the reactive and proactive service actions undertaken in the previous year, 
including the requested priority targets and reports back on the recommended issues and 
associated actions to be targeted in the following period.  It also includes key officer contacts for 
the reporting of waste and refuse and public realm issues.  

2. Target setting and recommendations 
 
All those at Committee have an opportunity to suggest issues that they would like to see tackled in 
the neighbourhood area during the upcoming period to help shape the activity to be undertaken 
within the public realm. Following suggestions that are received the relevant teams will consider 
the suggestions, and will prioritise work, responding reactively where appropriate and 
programming some work for the future. All suggested targets will be reported back on in the 
following period to update members and the public on the status of the issue. Recommendations 
will also be presented to the committee for consideration and to aid discussion.  
 
Recommendations 
The following are suggestions for members on what action could be considered for priority within 
the North Area for the period of December to February.  
 
Continuing priorities* 
 

Number Priority details 

1 

Enforcement patrols to tackle fly tipping on communal archways and green areas at 
Minerva Way area (including Augustus Close, Hercules Close, Neptune Close and 
Apollo Way), Campkin Road, Arbury Court, Nicholson Way area (including 
Albemarle Way, Hanson Court and Walker Court)  and Maitland Avenue/ Mortlock 
Road area. 

2 
Patrols to address dog fouling on Kings Hedges “Pulley” Recreation Ground, Nuns 
Way Recreation Ground and the areas of Blackberry Way and Lawrence Way 
including early mornings, evenings and weekends  

 
Members are recommended to endorse the above recommendations or to make proposed 
amendments, and in doing so to consider the community intelligence questions below to help 
shape the public realm work.   
 
Community intelligence questions 

1. What geographical locations would benefit from targeted work? (including public realm 
enforcement activity and clean-up work by the community payback) 

2. What locations for new and replacement general waste, recycling and dog bins (in line with 
resources available) should be considered?  

3. Where and when the dog warden service should patrol in order to target dog fouling?  
 
 

                                                      
*
 Amendments to continuing priorities are shown in italics 

Page 37



 
Page 4 of 22 

3. Routine activity 
 
Streets and Open Spaces teams work closely with residents, community and campaign groups to 
keep Cambridge clean, green and safe. Street cleansing works to clear shop fronts and maintain 
all residential streets to a good standard of cleaning by sweeping them regularly.  The team 
empties litterbins and dog bins across the city parks and open spaces, as well as removing graffiti 
and clearing needles and fly tipping.  
 
The grounds maintenance team maintains all council housing and highway grass and shrub beds 
across the city, and carries out the maintenance of the city’s cemeteries and crematoriums as well 
as the maintenance of all parks across the city. The City Rangers team provide a street-level, 
face-to-face contact point for people to raise any cleanliness and public safety issues that they 
might have concerning their neighbourhood. 
 
The dog warden patrols within Cambridge to increase people's awareness of the requirement to 
clear up after their pets, as well as collecting stray dogs within the city and works alongside animal 
charities to deliver educational roadshows. Investigation of instances of environmental crime in 
public places across the city is carried out by the public realm enforcement team. As well as 
undertaking enforcement action where necessary, the team provide advice for residents and 
businesses on issues including fly tipping, litter, waste, illegal advertising, abandoned shopping 
trolleys, verge parking and abandoned, untaxed and nuisance vehicles. 
  

Page 38



 
Page 5 of 22 

4. Specific issues and actions  
 
The following specific issues were identified for targeted action in the previous period. The 
following tables summarise the action undertaken and current situation, whether ongoing or 
completed, for each issue.  

Priority 1 

Enforcement joint working and patrols to deal with littering from 
students of Cambridge Regional College in the areas of Campkin Road 
and Nuns Way Recreation Ground and to work with the local 
businesses to address litter from their premises 

Action Taken 

A total of ten hours of patrols have been undertaken in the areas where 
students walk to and from CRC to the shops on Campkin Road. There has 
been one fixed penalty notice issued for littering and on each patrol guidance 
and advice and verbal warnings have been issued. During the winter months 
there is considerably less footfall and officers recommend this priority is 
removed for the period December to February.   

Current Situation: Completed 

Priority 2 

Enforcement patrols to tackle fly tipping on communal archways and 
green areas at Minerva Way area (including Augustus Close, Hercules 
Close, Neptune Close and Apollo Way), Campkin Road, Arbury Court, 
Nicholson Way area (including Albemarle Way, Hanson Court and 
Walker Court)  and Maitland Avenue/ Mortlock Road area. 

Action Taken 

 A total of 13 hours have been spent patrolling the Minerva Way area. 
A number of fly tipping incidents have been investigated and a fixed 
penalty notice for fly tipping has been issued and a prosecution file is 
currently with the legal team. A community protection warning has 
been issued to a resident who was persistently littering. The problem 
has now stopped due to the intervention. 

 A total of 8 hours of patrols have been undertaken in the Nuns Way 
area. Guidance and advice has been issued to waste carriers and intel 
has been passed to other organisations for follow up in relation to 
suspected nuisance and abandoned vehicles. 

 A total of 7.5 hours have been spent patrolling the Campkin Road 
area. This has included CRC patrols and patrols at the shops at 
Campkin Road. 

 A total of 14.5 hours have been spent at Arbury Court Recycling 
Centre and Arbury Court flats / shop area. Two untaxed vehicles have 
been removed and a number of fly tipping incidents have been 
investigated. Four suspects have been invited to interview and one 
trade waste fly tip is currently under investigation. A number of fly tips 
were investigated where no evidence was located. 

 A total of 15.5 hours have been spent in the Nicholson Way area. Two 
fixed penalty notices were issued for littering at the recycling points 
during their renovation. A number of fly tips were investigated where 
no evidence was located. 

 Patrols of the Pulley Rec area included the Nicholson Way area where 
fly tipping from the Aragon Close, Sackville Close, Woburn Close and 
Albemarle Way flat blocks were investigated. Open Space patrols 
were also conducted and guidance and advice was provided to dog 
walkers.  

Current Situation: Ongoing 

Page 39



 
Page 6 of 22 

Priority 3 
Patrols to address dog fouling on Kings Hedges “Pulley” Recreation 
Ground, Nuns Way Recreation Ground and the areas of Blackberry Way 
and Lawrence Way including early mornings, evenings and weekends 

Action Taken 

Fifty four patrols lasting just over 47 hours were conducted by the dog 
wardens and enforcement team during the period; during this time no 
individuals were witnessed failing to clear up after their dog on the priority 
areas Educational advice was provided to dog walkers and individuals that 
the dog wardens came across on their patrols.  

Current Situation: Ongoing 

Priority 4 
Enforcement patrols to tackle littering issues from shops at Carlton 
Terrace, and deal with waste management issues 

Action Taken 

A total of 5 hours have been spent in patrolling the Carlton Terrace area. 
Since intervention with the current manager of One Stop no littering incidents 
have been reported and during routine inspections litter has reduced in the 
garage area at the rear of the shop. This should be removed as a priority 
area and readdressed if the problem arises again.  

Current Situation: Completed 

Priority 5 
Enforcement patrols to deal with illegal camping at Logan’s Meadow, 
Pye’s Pitch and the Vie.   

Action Taken 
Officers have patrolled the areas for illegal camping, but have not found any 
cases of illegal camping. It is recommended that this area of work is not 
carried forward to the upcoming quarter.  

Current Situation: Completed  

 

Other issues:  

Issue Litter bin on Millennium bridge  

Action Taken 

A litter and recycling bin have been positioned at the Church Street / 
Ransome Close end of the bridge for a trial period, during which time their 
use will be monitored and permanent bins installed should the location 
provide suitable.  

Current Situation: Ongoing 

 

 

 

 

Page 40



 
Page 7 of 22 

5. Environmental Data 

Private Realm [North Area] 

Period Activity Investigations 
Treatments 
Carried out 

Informal 
Action / 
Written 

Warnings 

Statutory 
Notices 
Served 

Legal 
Proceedings 

Aug to Nov: 2015 
Pest Control 

† 59 
N/A N/A N/A 

Aug to Nov: 2016 
† 42 

Aug to Nov: 2015 
Noise 

Complaints 

144 N/A 
‡ 

7 0 

Aug to Nov: 2016 155  8 1 

Aug to Nov: 2015 
Refuse/ Waste 

Complaints 

8 N/A 
‡ 

0 0 

Aug to Nov: 2016 3  0 0 

Aug to Nov: 2015 Other public 
health 

complaints§ 

3 N/A 
‡ 

0 0 

Aug to Nov: 2016 9  0 0 

Aug to Nov: 2015 Private Sector 
housing 

standards 

23 N/A 
‡ 

1 0 

Aug to Nov: 2016 35  1 0 

Data is from the period August 23
rd

 to November 15
th
 

  

                                                      
†
 Not specified 

‡
 All complaints will generally have at least one such action 

§
 Other public health complaints includes odour, smoke, bonfires, filthy and verminous 

P
age 41



 
Page 8 of 22 

Public Realm Data  

Public Realm Enforcement [North Area] 

Period Activity Investigations 
Written 

Warnings 
Statutory 
Notices 

Fixed Penalty 
Notices 

Simple 
Cautions 

Legal 
Proceedings 

Sept to Nov 2015 Abandoned 
vehicles 

26 
N/A N/A 

1 0 0 

Sept to Nov 2016 35 1 0 0 

Sept to Nov 2015 Nuisance 
vehicles** 

1 1 
N/A 

0 0 0 

Sept to Nov 2016 0 0 0 0 0 

Sept to Nov 2015 Derelict 
cycles 

11 
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Sept to Nov 2016 17 

Sept to Nov 2015 Domestic 
waste 

63 27 0 13 0 1 

Sept to Nov 2016 53 3 0 6 0 0 

Sept to Nov 2015 
Trade waste 

5 4 0 0 0 0 

Sept to Nov 2016 5 0 0 0 0 0 

Sept to Nov 2015 
Litter 

9 0 0 8 0 1 

Sept to Nov 2016 2 0 0 2 0 0 

Sept to Nov 2015 
Illegal 

camping 

1 
N/A 

1 
N/A 

0 0 

Sept to Nov 2016 1 1 0 0 

Sept to Nov 2015 Illegal 
advertising 

4 3 
N/A 

0 0 0 

Sept to Nov 2016 0 0 0 0 0 

Data is from 1 September to 28 November 2016.  
 

  

                                                      
**
 Nuisance vehicles includes vehicles displayed for sale or being repaired (other than in an emergency) on the public highway 

P
age 42



 
Page 9 of 22 

Summary of public realm enforcement data 

 

 Of the 35 abandoned vehicles the majority were removed by their owners or claimed within the 7 day notice period. Eight abandoned 
vehicles were seized from Izzak Walton Way and St Albans Road, of these both vehicles were destroyed when they were not claimed. 
One fixed penalty notice was also issued for a vehicle seized from Cook Close. Two untaxed vehicles were seized from Arbury Court and 
have been destroyed after they were not claimed.   

 Seventeen derelict cycles were removed from across all four wards. The number of cycles removed as abandoned in the North area 
usually varies between 15 to 25 a period.  

 There were 53 domestic waste investigations conducted in the area, the majority of which was waste littered and fly tipped at recycling 
centres, bin stores and communal land across the area. Of the investigations conducted there was three community protection warning 
letters. Six fixed penalties were issued, four for littering and two for fly tipping. Seventeen investigations resulted in untraceable suspects 
and there are currently twenty seven ongoing cases awaiting further action.     

 There were five cases of trade waste investigated in the North area, in two of the cases no evidence was found and three other cases are 
still ongoing.  

 There were two cases of litter investigated in the North area and two fixed penalties were issued for littering on Campkin Road and Church 
Street. One fixed penalty notice has been paid, and the second case is ongoing.   

 There was one case of illegal camping, the majority of which was located on Alexandra Gardens. The occupier of the camp was served a 
notice and was subsequently removed by the owner within the 24 hour notice period.  

  

P
age 43



 
Page 10 of 22 

Dog Warden Service [North Area] 

Stray dogs 

Period Activity 
Number of 

cases 
Rehomed Destroyed Claimed In Kennels Comment 

Sept to Nov 
2015 Stray 

dogs 

20 4 3 13 0 
Eleven other stray dog calls were received, but the 
dogs were collected by their owner before the dog 

warden attended 

Sept to Nov 
2016 

16 0 2 7 7 
Two other stray dog calls were received, but the dogs 
were collected by their owner before the dog warden 

attended 

 

Dog Control Orders 

Period Activity Investigations 
Written 

Warnings 
Statutory 
Notices 

Fixed Penalty 
Notices 

Simple 
Cautions 

Legal 
Proceedings 

Sept to Nov 2015 Dog control 
orders: 
Fouling 

10 1 0 1 0 0 

Sept to Nov 2016 13 0 0 0 0 0 

Sept to Nov 2015 Dog control 
orders: 

Exclusion 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

Sept to Nov 2016 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Sept to Nov 2015 Dog control 
orders: 
Leads 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

Sept to Nov 2016 1 0 0 0 0 0 

Sept to Nov 2015 Other dog 
complaints†† 

1 1 0 0 0 0 

Sept to Nov 2016 9 0 0 0 0 0 

Data is from 1 September to 28 November 2016 

                                                      
††

 Includes issues such as barking, welfare, signage requests and educational advice as well as joint working with Environmental Health, RSPCA and Housing Associations’  

P
age 44



 
Page 11 of 22 

Operations cleansing data by ward [North Area] 

Period Activity 
Total number of 

incidents 

Ward 

Arbury 
East 

Chesterton 
Kings Hedges 

West 
Chesterton 

Sept to Nov 2015 

Fly tipping 

108 32 17 50 9 

Sept to Nov 2016 177 29 10 128 10 

Sept to Nov 2015 
Offensive graffiti‡‡ 

1 0 0 1 0 

Sept to Nov 2016 1 0 0 1 0 

Sept to Nov 2015 

Detrimental graffiti§§ 

28 6 7 6 9 

Sept to Nov 2016 33 4 5 14 10 

Sept to Nov 2015 

Needles 

1 1 4 0 5 

Sept to Nov 2016 38 0 0 38  0 

Sept to Nov 2015 

Shopping trolleys 

25 3 13 3 6 

Sept to Nov 2016 12 3 8 1 0 

  

                                                      
‡‡

 Offensive graffiti includes but is not limited to that which contains swear words, reference to religion, racist,  reference to a person / naming a person, drawings of human 
body parts, words of reference to human body parts and reference to sexual activity.  The service aim is to remove this type of graffiti within 1 working day. 
§§

 Detrimental graffiti is graffiti that contains but is not limited to general tags, drawings not falling under the above criteria, and words not classified as offensive. The service 
aim is to remove this type of graffiti within 5 working days.  

P
age 45



 
Page 12 of 22 

Summary of operations cleansing data:  
  

 Of the 37 reports for fly tip in the Arbury ward, four each came from Albemarle Way and Stretten Avenue area; no other particular trends 
with types of fly tipped material were identified in this period. 

 In East Chesterton, there were repeat incidents at Maitland Avenue area and no other trends for fly tipping in this ward were identified.  

 In Kings Hedges the majority of waste was fly tipped in and around communal areas and recycling areas of the estates. Nineteen fly tips 
were from Arbury Court, 14 from Sackville Close recycling areas, 10 from Minerva Way area, 9 from Aragon Close and 6 from 
Edgecombe/Cadwin Field area. No patterns of repeat offences have been identified but enforcement and ranger patrols have been 
increased due to a number of these areas being priority areas to address the problems of fly tipping and as part of a campaign that is 
currently being run to highlight the issues of fly tipping.    

 Ten fly tips were removed from West Chesterton, which included repeat offences of dumping at Milton Road.  

 Three of the four instances of detrimental graffiti in Arbury were recorded in September with the other in October 2016. Two of the five 
instances in East Chesterton were in St Andrews Road area and five of the fourteen instances in Kings Hedges were general tagging in 
Nuns Way recreation area. 

 The offensive Graffiti in Kings Hedges ward was offensive wording at Campkin Road found in September 2016. 

 In October 2016, 38 needles were removed from a communal garden on Campkin Road. 

 The number of trolleys impounded by Streets and Open Spaces was 1.  
 
 
 
 
 
  

P
age 46



 
Page 13 of 22 

Waste and Recycling Data [City wide]  

 
This section includes information about the Waste Policy team’s area of responsibility.  The team has an Operational Plan that covers the work 
for the year.  This work is generally not area based but it is useful to residents and provides statistics to demonstrate activity and continuous 
improvement in areas of sustainable waste management. 

Activity Q1 Apr-Jun Q2 Jul to Sept 

Recycling rate – dry recycling 2016/17 21.1% 22.4% 

Recycling rate – dry recycling 2015/16 21.4% 21% 

Recycling rate – composting 2016/17 23.9% 24.8% 

Recycling rate – composting 2015/16 23.8% 22.3% 

Amount collected for disposal 
2016/17 

55% 52.8% 

Amount collected for disposal 
2015/16 

54.8% 56.7% 

No of press releases issued 3 4 

No of 2nd blue bins delivered 161 50 

No of 2nd Green bins delivered 46 N/A 

Number of 3rd and 4th green bins registered 3 N/A 

No. of bins changed from standard to small 30 4 

No of events attended 12 8 

No of people spoken to 730 352 

No of Kitchen Caddies given out at events*** 460 288 

No of recycling champions (RC) at events 8 8 

No of new RC recruited 2 0 

Amount of rubbish/recycling collected at events 
(tonnes) 

Total 36.96 tonnes 
27.6 T rubbish 
9.2 T recycled 

Total 9.72 tonnes 
Rubbish:8.1 

Recycled:1.62 

Amount of goods (clothes, books etc.) collected via 
the British Heart Foundation and college 

campaign. 
N/A N/A 

No of community/school visits to AmeyCespa 11 13 

                                                      
***

 Excludes caddies given out via council receptions 

P
age 47



 
Page 14 of 22 

Summary of Waste and Recycling Data 
 
Total Recycling rate for quarter 2 is 47.24% for Cambridge. The combined recycling rate Cambridge and South Cambs waste service is 55%. 
Second green bin information is not available as time of writing due to IT issues but will be complete by next quarter. 
 
Events attended are: 
Hanover Community Day 
Milton Country Park parklife 
Kingsway Community day 
Cambridge Folk Festival 
Queen Edith Community day 
Trumpington, Gilping Place door knocking 
Fulbourn Talk to the Women's Group 
Community action day at The Ship Pub 
 

P
age 48



 
Page 15 of 22 

6. Proactive and community work  
 
During the period September 2016 to November 2016 the following proactive and community work 

has been undertaken.  

Task Fly tip Campaign 

Action Taken 
As part of the councils ‘Report It, Stop It’ fly tip campaign, Community 
Payback worked with the city rangers to clear fly tip hot spots of rubbish and 
cleaned recycling centres to help deter repeat fly tipping. 

Current Situation Completed 

 

Task Recycling Centres 

Action Taken 
The City Rangers worked with Community Payback to remove the old fencing 
at around 10 recycling areas, ready for their refurbishment with node bins. 
These areas were also cleared of all rubbish and cleaned in preparation. 

Current Situation Completed 

 

Task Guided Busway Litter Pick 

Action Taken 

A team of Community Payback litter picked along the boundary of the guided 
busway route on Kings Hedges Road (which does not form part of the 
County council cleansing of the route) and which has been scheduled for 
every 6 weeks. 

Current Situation Ongoing 

Page 49



 
Page 16 of 22 

7. Key contacts  

Officers 

Area Contact Telephone Number Email 

Environmental Health Manager Yvonne O’Donnell 01223 457951 yvonne.odonnell@cambridge.gov.uk 

Senior Operations Manager Don Blair 01223 458575 Don.blair@cambridge.gov.uk 

Operations Manager (Grounds 
Maintenance) 

Paul Jones 01223 458215 Paul.Jones@cambridge.gov.uk 

Operations Manager (Community 
Engagement and Enforcement) 

Wendy Young 01223 458578 Wendy.young@cambridge.gov.uk 

North Area Ranger: Joe Obe City Rangers 01223 458282 cityrangers@cambridge.gov.uk 

Public Realm Enforcement (North 
team – Arbury and Kings Hedges) 

Tom Pickover and Lisa  
Lowndes 

01223 458573 
01223 458062 

streetenforcement@cambridge.gov.uk 

Public Realm Enforcement (East 
team – East and West Chesterton) 

Nick Kester and  
Jamie Lambert 

Dog Warden 

Samantha Dewing (Mon-
Wed) 

01223 457883 dogwarden@cambridge.gov.uk 

Sharron Munro (Wed-Fri) 

Volunteer opportunities (Streets, 
Parks and Open Spaces) 

Rina Dunning 01223 458084 Caterina.dunning@cambridge.gov.uk 

Recycling Champions Co-ordinator 01223 458240 recycling.champions@cambridge.gov.uk 

Out of Hours Emergency calls 0300 3038389 N/A 

P
age 50

mailto:yvonne.odonnell@cambridge.gov.uk
mailto:Don.blair@cambridge.gov.uk
mailto:Paul.Jones@cambridge.gov.uk
mailto:Wendy.young@cambridge.gov.uk
mailto:cityrangers@cambridge.gov.uk
mailto:streetenforcement@cambridge.gov.uk
mailto:dogwarden@cambridge.gov.uk
mailto:Caterina.dunning@cambridge.gov.uk
mailto:recycling.champions@cambridge.gov.uk


 
Page 17 of 22 

 

Issues  

Area Contact Telephone Number Email 

Dog fouling 
Litter 

Fly tipping (public land) 
Graffiti 

Needles 
Abandoned, untaxed and nuisance 

vehicles 
Illegal camping 

Bulky waste collections 
New blue, green and black bins 

Replacement blue, green and black bins 
Repairs to blue, black and green bins 

Customer Service Centre 01223 458282 wasteandstreets@cambridge.gov.uk 

Abandoned bicycles Customer Service Centre 01223 458282 cityrangers@cambridge.gov.uk 

Pest Control 

Refuse and Environment 01223 457900 env.health@cambridge.gov.uk. 

Noise 

Stray and lost dogs Customer Service Centre 01223 457900 dogwarden@cambridge.gov.uk 

 

 

P
age 51

mailto:wasteandstreets@cambridge.gov.uk
mailto:env.health@cambridge.gov.uk
mailto:dogwarden@cambridge.gov.uk


 
Page 18 of 22 

8. Resources  
The following are suggestions that members of the North Area Committee and residents and 
businesses may wish to consider or request for the upcoming period:  
 
Remaining bins stocks for the city have been reallocated across all wards to ensure that bins are 
installed where required.  
 
Recycling and general street litter bins 
 
A small quantity of recycling and general street litter bins are available for each ward, as follows: 
 

Ward Bins used Bins available for installation 

Arbury 7 3 

East Chesterton 11 3 

Kings Hedges 11 3 

West Chesterton 6 3 

 
We would like to receive suggestions for where bins should be installed on the street and will 
investigate the suitability of all suggested locations. We will also be undertaking a review of where 
bins are currently installed to see how they are used.  
 
Installed bin sites: 

Ward Location Installation Date Comments 

West Chesterton  Bateson Road (near to school) December 2014  

West Chesterton 
De Freville Avenue (Chesterton 

Road bus stop) 
December 2014  

West Chesterton Chesterton Road (near Old Spring) December 2014  

West Chesterton 
Gilbert Road (junction with Milton 

Road) 
March 2015  

West Chesterton 
Milton Road (bus stop by 

Downhams Lane) 
December 2015  

West Chesterton Chesterton Road  December 2015  

Kings Hedges Kendal Way December 2014  

Kings Hedges St Kilda’s Avenue (near new bench) December 2014  

Kings Hedges 
Kings Hedges Road (bus stop near 

Woodhouse Way) 
July 2015  

Kings Hedges 
Kings Hedges Recreation Ground 

(by learner pool) 
October 2015  

Kings Hedges 
Kings Hedges Recreation Ground 

(near to Woburn Close) 
October 2015  

Kings Hedges Hanson Court  September 2015 2 sets of bins 

Kings Hedges 
Kings Hedges Road (near to 

Buchan Street shops) 
September 2015  

Kings Hedges 
Markham Close (junction of 

Lavender Road) 
September 2015  

Kings Hedges Hawkins Road (Atkins Road end) September 2015  

Kings Hedges 
Campkin Road (near to bus stop by 

community centre) 
September 2015  

Arbury 
Frenches Road (near school cut 

through to Harvey Goodwin Avenue) 
December 2014  

Arbury Roseford Road (at Perse Way December 2014  

Page 52



 
Page 19 of 22 

junction) 

Arbury  Acton Road (at Perse Way junction) December 2014  

Arbury 
Chesterton Lane (near to Clare 

Colony) 
June 2015  

Arbury 
Carlton Way (junction with Hall Farm 

Road) 
June 2015  

Arbury 
Chesterton Lane (outside Cripps 

Court) 
August 2015  

Arbury 
Verulam Way (through to 

Aylesborough Close) 
September 2015  

East Chesterton Hailing Way March 2015  

East Chesterton Evergreens (at the end of the road) December 2014  

East Chesterton Echo House December 2014  

East Chesterton Kinross Road December 2014 2 sets of bins 

East Chesterton Edinburgh Road December 2014  

East Chesterton Green End Road (near Grumpys) March 2015 2 sets of bins 

East Chesterton 
Green End Road (between 

Sherbourne Close and Co-op) 
December 2014  

East Chesterton Cowley Road (near bridge) July 2015  

East Chesterton Sherbourne Close February 2015  

 
Dog bin provision 
A number of dog bins are available for each ward, as follows:  

Ward Bins used Bins available for installation 

Arbury 4 1 

East Chesterton 3 2 

Kings Hedges 4 1 

West Chesterton 0 1 

 
We would like to receive suggestions for where bins should be installed on the parks and open 
spaces and will investigate the suitability of all suggested locations. We will also be undertaking a 
review of where bins are currently installed to see how they are used.  
 
Installed bin sites: 

Ward Location Installation Date Comments 

Kings Hedges 
Campkin Road (Hawkins Road 

green area) 
December 2014  

Kings Hedges 
Buchan Street (Callander Close 

area) 
March 2016  

Kings Hedges Larkin Close March 2016  

Kings Hedges Augustus Close August 2016  

East Chesterton Pyes Pitch May 2015  

East Chesterton 
Union Lane (junction with Milton 

Road) 
December 2014  

East Chesterton Logan’s Meadow December 2014  

Arbury 
Bateson Road (near green 

space) 
September 2015  

Arbury 
Perse Way (footpath through to 

Ferrars Way) 
September 2015  

Arbury 
Perse Way (footpath through to 

Cockerell Road) 
September 2015  

Arbury Hall Farm Road September 2015  

Page 53



 
Page 20 of 22 

Pocket ashtray distribution 
Locations of where pocket ashtrays should be distributed from are welcomed by the Public Realm 
Enforcement team.  
 
Dog fouling signs 
Small quantities of ‘no dog fouling’ signs are available for each ward, as follows: 

Ward Signs used 
Signs available for 

installation 

Arbury 0 13 

East Chesterton 2 11 

Kings Hedges 1 12 

West Chesterton 0 13 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

Page 54



 
Page 21 of 22 Page 55



 
Page 22 of 22 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 56



 
Report Page No: 1 

 

 

Cambridge City Council 
 

   

 

To: North Central  Area Committee   15/12/2016 
 

Report by: Joel Carre, 
Head of Streets and Open Spaces 

Wards affected: Arbury, Kings Hedges, East Chesterton, West 
Chesterton 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMME (EIP) 
 
1.0    Executive summary 
 
         This report requests that the Committee: 
 

 Considers the allocation of funding expected to be available for EIP 
projects in North Area in 2017-18 towards the applications recently 
received and outlined in Appendix A of this report, and to consider 
extending a further application opportunity during 2017 to utilise any 
thus far committed funds. 
 

 

 
2.0    Recommendations  
 

    The North Area Committee is recommended: 
 
2.1 To consider the allocation of £39,000 of the new EIP funding expected 

to be available for North Area during 2017-18 towards the list of 
proposed projects in Appendix A of this report. 

2.2 To consider whether to extend a further application opportunity in 
2017-18 with the modest amount of funding expected to be available, 
or defer this invitation to 2018-19. 

 
 
3.0 Background  
 
3.1 The Environmental Improvement Programme (EIP) funds and delivers 

small scale projects around the city that make a lasting and noticeable 
improvement to streets and public places.  The programme was 
reviewed during 2015 to put more emphasis on smaller, community 
supported applications (that can be developed and delivered more 
quickly) and to offer councillors more than one application opportunity 

Page 57

Agenda Item 7



 
Report Page No: 2 

each year (subject to resource availability).  The programme eligibility 
criteria are attached at Appendix D. 

 
3.2 The programme is supported by the City Council up to year 2019-20 

with an annual capital budget which is split across the council’s four 
areas depending on population, with devolved decision making to 
Area Committees to allocate the budget available to individual project 
applications each year. 

 
3.3 First round applications for new EIP projects to be funded from the 

2016-17 year budget were invited in early 2016, and considered by 
North Area Committee on 31 March 2016.  With the budget available 
for North area during 2016-17, Area Committee determined to add the 
four new project submitted to the programme, and to allow Councillors 
a further application opportunity later in 2016. 

 
 
4.0 2016-17 Year Applications 
 
4.1 Applications for further potential EIP projects were invited from North 

area councillors during summer 2016.  In order to assist with delivery, 
the guidance provided to applicants suggested that the focus be on 
small, straightforward projects that could be delivered within a time 
frame of relatively few months. 

 
4.2 Preliminary feasibility work has been carried out on each of the 

applications that have been suggested for the 2016-17 Environmental 
Improvement Programme.  This included an initial assessment of the 
likely costs involved in delivering those projects considered, at this 
stage, to be potentially feasible. 

 
4.3 The table in Appendix A lists the eight new project applications that 

could be feasibly considered as part of the EIP Programme, should 
they be allocated funding by North Area Committee.  Whilst some are 
relatively straightforward, others would take time to develop and 
deliver and are thus likely unachievable during the 2016-17 
programme year. 

 
 
5.0 Funding Position 
 
5.1 The budget available to develop and deliver new EIP projects across 

North area has been reduced from £59,200 in 2014-15 to £50,320 
annually from 2016 to 2020.  This is in order to support the city-wide 
£30,000 contribution to ensure an LHI programme can be delivered 

Page 58



 
Report Page No: 3 

across Cambridge, where the majority of costs involved are met by the 
County Council.  The County Council has recently invited applications 
to this programme for 2017-18. 

 
5.2 The City Council’s revised EIP budget available for 2016-17 has a 

number of existing funding commitments for schemes already adopted 
into the programme (but yet to be completed) as outlined in Appendix 
C, plus £5,954 for the annual provision of summer hanging baskets in 
Chesterton High Street.  A further £23,000 was committed to progress 
the four new EIP projects adopted by Area Committee on 31 March 
2016.  These commitments exhaust the funding currently available for 
EIP projects within North Area. 

 
5.3 The total anticipated cost of the eight new scheme applications 

received and listed in Appendix A is £39,000.  Until such time as 
further budget is available to support the programme (anticipated from 
April 2017), it is impractical to make a start on further projects. 

 
5.4 However, should it be the wish of the Area Committee, the eight new 

schemes could be adopted into the programme for funding and 
development from 2017-18.  In combination with the existing annual 
commitment for hanging baskets, it is currently anticipated that this 
would leave approximately just £2,000 available for allocation towards 
further projects during 2017-18. 

 
5.5 It is possible that there could be some small savings arising from the 

delivery of projects from previous years outlined in Appendix C, which 
might be carried forward and added to the budget for 2017-18 
onwards.  The precise amount has yet to be quantified and is 
dependent on final out-turn costs of projects currently being 
completed.  It might however provide some contingency for any 
unforeseen costs incurred in delivering those projects currently under 
development. 

 
 
6.0 Items for Determination 
 
6.1 Area Committee is asked whether it wishes to support the adoption of 

the eight new scheme applications received into the EIP programme 
for North Area for funding from 2017-18.  This would obviate the need 
to seek further bids at the start of next year, as would normally be the 
case. 

 
6.2 Instead, it is suggested that budget spend incurred in completing the 

outstanding programme commitments be monitored carefully, such 

Page 59



 
Report Page No: 4 

that any un-committed funds, or savings, might be made available 
either to enable a second (albeit modestly funded) project application 
round later in 2017, or carried forward into the 2018-19 year. 

 
6.3 The latter of these two options would be preferable from an overall 

programme management perspective, as well as avoiding raising 
expectations and Councillors needing to determine how best to utilise 
what is expected to be only a very modest remaining budget, prior to 
the addition of further programme funds anticipated during 2018-19. 

 
 
7.0    Background papers  
    

None 
 
 
8.0    Appendices  
 

APPENDIX A 
Summary of Feasible Second Round EIP Projects for 2016-17. 
 
APPENDIX C 
Progress of Existing EIP Schemes – North Area. 
 
APPENDIX D 
EIP Eligibility Criteria. 
 
 

9.0    Inspection of papers  
 

To inspect the background papers or if you have a query on the report 
please contact: 
 
Author’s Name: John Richards 
Author’s Phone Number:  01223 458525 
Author’s Email:  john.richards@cambridge.gov.uk 

 

Page 60

mailto:john.richards@cambridge.gov.uk


APPENDIX A

SUMMARY OF FEASIBLE SECOND ROUND EIP SCHEME APPLICATIONS FOR 2016/17 - NORTH AREA

No. Scheme Title Scheme Description Promoted by Ward Estimated 
Cost 

£

Secured funding 
contributions

£

EIP Allocation 
requested

Comments

N5 Arbury Court parking 
bays

Protective barrier or bollards to rear 
of parking bays in service road, to 
prevent damage to fences of 
adjacent property in Redfern Close 
from parking vehicles.

Cllr M Todd-Jones Arbury 2,000 - 2,000 Attempts have been made to 
protect fencing in the past but this 
has been ineffective and/or fallen 
into disrepair. The very close 
proximity of the fencing to the two 
bays limits the protective options 
available. 

N6 Hanson Court green 
open space re-
landscaping

Removal of base to former 
playground that is no longer 
required, and replacement with 
suitable landscaping (grass, with 
possible tree).

Cllr K Price Kings 
Hedges

7,500 - 7,500 There is no local desire for further 
provision. Removal of the old base 
would increase the level of green 
space and appearance of the area. 
Approx 200 square metres of land 
involved.

N7 Hawthorn Way fencing Provision of new replacement 
fencing around the green open 
space area adjacent to Chestnut 
Grove junction, to match that of 
better quality further along the 
street.

Cllr M Sargeant & 
County Cllr J 
Scutt

West 
Chesterton

5,000 - 5,000 There are two triangular shaped 
areas of established green open 
space on either side of the junction, 
and care would be needed to work 
around the roots of mature trees. 
An estimate of approx 75 metres of 
fence removal and replacement 
would be needed. Would require 
County Council Highways team 
agreement, possibly with a 
commuted sum to maintain.

N8 Humberstone Road 
trees

Replanting of suitable species of 
street trees to replace those lost 
over time, in keeping with other 
residential roads in the area.

Cllr M Sargeant & 
County Cllr J 
Scutt

West 
Chesterton

3,500 - 3,500 Any new trees planted within a 
hard landscaped highway 
environment will require the 
provision of suitable planting pits, 
both to support the tree's 
development and prevent damage 
to the highway. These 
requirements increase the cost 
considerably to around £3,500 per 
tree. There is one replacement 
planting opportunity currently 
outside No. 80.

P
age 61



APPENDIX A
N9 Leys Avenue to Arbury 

Court path
Improvement of path linking Leys 
Avenue with the rear access to 
Arbury Court, which has become 
uneven and broken over the years.

Cllr M Sargeant & 
County Cllr J 
Scutt

West 
Chesterton

7,500 - 7,500 The existing path is maintained by 
the Council's Housing service, and 
passes above the roots of adjacent 
trees - which as they mature are 
lifting and breaking up the path. A 
long term solution would require 
reconstructing and raising the path 
level, at a considerable cost 
beyond the scope of the EIP 
programme. A more cost effective, 
albeit shorter term, solution would 
be to simply overlay the existing 
path, lifting the level slightly as 
necessary. Subject to suitable 
approvals.

N10 Rackham Close 
boundary wall / fencing

Extend height of existing brick wall 
to rear of properties 1-6 Rackham 
Close forming boundary with St. 
Luke's Primary School with metal 
fencing. To complete a previous 
EIP / Safer City project for the area.

Cllr M Todd-Jones Arbury 3,500 - 3,500 Installation of 450mm high metal 
fencing bolted to top of existing 
brick wall. Provisional cost estimate 
from January 2014 updated.

N11 Rackham Close lighting Provision of additional lighting to 
rear of properties 1-6 Rackham 
Close adjacent to St. Luke's Primary 
School boundary. To complete a 
previous EIP / Safer City project for 
the area.

Cllr M Todd-Jones Arbury 5,000 - 5,000 Provisional sum for the installation 
of 5 number solar illuminated 
bollards, or alternatively two 
number solar 'Balmoral' type 3 
metre lighting units (to be 
determined).

N12 Provision of new street 
benches at various 
locations

Locations include Mitcham's Corner 
adjacent to Lloyds Bank / Tony's 
water trough, the junction with 
Springfield Road, Hawthorn Way 
fenced off area, Victoria Park 
junction with Victoria Road and 
Woodhead Drive junction with 
College Fields.

Cllr M Sargeant & 
County Cllr J 
Scutt

West 
Chesterton

5,000 - 5,000 Provisional sum for the installation 
of up to 5 new benches with some 
foundation/hardstanding base as 
necessary; up to £1,000 per unit. 
Most locations and bench 
specification will likely require 
County Highways or other third 
party approval.

TOTAL 39,000 0 39,000

P
age 62



APPENDIX C

PROGRESS OF EXISTING EIP SCHEMES - NORTH AREA
No. Scheme Title Scheme Description Promoted 

by
Ward Approved 

Budget                 
£

Completion 
Expected

Comments

1 Ramsden Square / 
Kings Hedges Road 
Verge Parking

Traffic Regulation Order to prohibit 
parking on grass verges on part of 
Kings Hedges Road and in Ramsden 
Square.

Cllr K Price Kings 
Hedges

3,000 Winter 2016-
17

Formal objections to Traffic Order process 
determined by County Council. Procurement of 
signing works in preparation.

2 Fen Road Traffic 
Calming Improvements

Review and revise the existing traffic 
calmed features along Fen Road up 
to and beyond the railway line. 

Former Cllr 
T Ward

East 
Chesterton

20,000 Winter 2016-
17

Scheme for Water Street end developed by County 
Council in conjunction with S106 and Cycleways 
funded improvements. Construction underway with 
work due to complete December 2016, with new 
tree planting to follow.

3 Green End Road 
Pedestrian Crossing

Improvements to the visibility of the 
pedestrian crossing on Green End 
Road just up from the Green Park 
junction by replacing the planting.

Cllr G Bird East 
Chesterton

2,500 N/A Scheme on hold due to developing County Council 
City Deal proposals for corridor. Review thereafter.

4 Green End Road Tree 
Planting

New tree planting along northern 
section of Green End Road.

Cllr G Bird East 
Chesterton

8,500 N/A Scheme on hold due to developing County Council 
City Deal proposals for corridor. Review thereafter.

5 Campkin Road hanging 
baskets

4 hanging baskets for the lamp posts 
on Campkin Road opposite the 
shopping area.

Cllr K Price Kings 
Hedges

2,500 Completed Baskets in place for summer 2016 season.

6 Chesterton High Street 
by Haymakers Pub / 
Union Lane junction

Missing bollards along footway 
adjacent to Pub to be reinstated.

County Cllr 
I Manning 
& former 
Cllr S Kerr

East 
Chesterton

1,000 Winter 2016-
17

Replacement of missing bollards in County Council 
highways maintenance team programme for 2016-
17.

P
age 63



APPENDIX C

No. Scheme Title Scheme Description Promoted 
by

Ward Approved 
Budget                 

£

Completion 
Expected

Comments

7 Church Street / High 
Street junction, 
Chesterton

Protection for grass on the left side 
(approaching from Church Street) of 
this junction to improve drainage and 
look of corner. Might include new low 
level planting or fencing.

County Cllr 
I Manning, 
Cllr G Bird 
& former 
Cllr S Kerr

East 
Chesterton

5,000 Winter 2016-
17

Improvements being considered by County Council 
highways maintenance team, who have had 
difficulty resourcing. Liaison underway to expedite 
delivery.

8 North area ward 
dropped crossing 
improvements

Dropped crossing access 
improvements across the 4 North 
area wards, targetted towards local 
shopping and sheltered housing 
areas.

Cllr G Bird Arbury, 
Kings 
Hedges, 
East & 
West 
Chesterton

40,777 Winter 2016-
17

Works procured with construction commenced 
November 2016.

9 West Chesterton 
residential streets 
access improvements

Provision of double yellow line 
waiting restrictions to improve 
access in various areas of Hawthorn 
Way, Herbert Street, Green's Road, 
Metcalfe Road, Courtney Way, 
Gurney Way, Ascham Road and 
Hurst Park Avenue.

Cllr D 
Tunnacliffe

West 
Chesterton

4,550 Winter 2016-
17

Formal objections to Traffic Order process to be 
considered, and determined as necessary, by 
County Council. Anticipated January 2017 
Cambridge Joint Area Committee. Design and 
procurement of road marking works under 
preparation.

10 French's Road to 
Harvey Goodwin 
Avenue footpath

Improve surface of well used 
connecting footpath link to school, 
and improve lighting (by adding 
additional lamp column and / or 
cutting back overhanging trees).

Cllr M Todd-
Jones

Arbury 10,000 Work currently 
in preparation 
for anticipated 

completion 
during 2017

Appropriate works under investigation.

11 Hazelwood Close and 
Molewood Close

Improvement of shrub beds and 
surrounds across estate.

Cllr C Perry 
(via Cllr M 
Todd-
Jones)

Arbury 5,000 Work currently 
in preparation 
for anticipated 

completion 
during 2017

Appropriate works under investigation.

P
age 64



APPENDIX C

No. Scheme Title Scheme Description Promoted 
by

Ward Approved 
Budget                 

£

Completion 
Expected

Comments

12 Carlton Way shops 
forecourt

Repairs to brick wall and renewal of 
timber rail fencing that are in 
deteriorating condition.

Cllr C 
O'Reilly (via 
Cllr M Todd-
Jones)

Arbury 3,000 Work currently 
in preparation 
for anticipated 

completion 
during 2017

Appropriate works under investigation.

13 Trafalgar Street at 
junction with Victoria 
Avenue

Installation of dropped kerbs on 
either side of Trafalgar Street to 
assist crossing the road.

County Cllr 
J Scutt

West 
Chesterton

5,000 Work currently 
in preparation 
for anticipated 

completion 
during 2017

Appropriate works under investigation.

P
age 65



T
his page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX D 

N:\POLICY & PROJECTS\SOS\Project Delivery\PDE 020 Environmental Improvements\EIP 021 PROJECTS 2013-
14\East\East Area\ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA.doc 

ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA 
 

As agreed by the Executive Councillor (Environment) on the 18th March 
2003 with amendments agreed on the 22nd March 2005. 

 
Essential Criteria: 

 
 Schemes should have a direct, lasting and noticeable improvement to 

the appearance of a street or area. 
 Schemes should be publicly visible and accessible. 
 Should the scheme be on private land, the owners’ permission must be 

granted – unless there are exceptional circumstances by which the 
Area Committee may wish to act unilaterally, with full knowledge and 
responsibility for the implication of such action. 

 Schemes must provide low future maintenance costs. 
 

Desirable criteria: 
 

 Active involvement of local people. 
 The project will benefit a large number of local people. 
 ‘Partnership’ funding. 
 The potential for inclusion of employment training opportunities. 
 Ease and simplicity of implementation. 
 Potential for meeting key policy objectives (e.g. improving community 

safety or contributing to equal opportunities). 
 

Ineligible for funding: 
 

 Where a readily available alternative source of funding is available. 
 Revenue projects. 
 Schemes that have already received Council funding (unless it can be 

clearly demonstrated that this would not be ‘top up’ funding). 
 Works that the City or County Council are under an immediate 

obligation to carry out (e.g. repair of dangerous footways) 
 Play areas (S106 funding should pay for this resource) 

 
Other Information: 
 
The following categories of work were agreed as being eligible for funding by 
the Area Committees: 
 

 Works in areas of predominately council owned housing 
 

 Works to construct lay-bys where a comprehensive scheme can be 
carried out which not only relieves parking problems but achieves 
environmental improvements. 

 

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank



Community Events and Information 

This item is included for information only and there will be no discussion 

of the items below.  

 

 

CHRISTMAS LIGHTS SWITCH ON With the Mayor 

 Chesterton Methodist Church 

Thursday 8th December 6.00 - 7.00pm 

Carol Singing with local musicians and a visit from Santa! 

Light refreshments provided 

Organised by Cambridge City Council and the Chesterton Festival 

Committee 

For further details please phone 01223 420309 or email 

brownsfield@cambridge.gov.uk 

 

 

 

  

Page 69

Agenda Item 9

mailto:brownsfield@cambridge.gov.uk


Consultation Opportunities 

The following link will take you to current consultation opportunities. 
 

www.cambridge.gov.uk/current-consultations  
 

These include: 

Have you say on: -   

Have your say about proposed changes to our river 

moorings policy  

A twelve-week consultation on proposals to change the way Cambridge 
City Council manages moorings alongside its land by the River Cam. 
Consultation runs from  

27 October 2016, 9:00am to 20 January 2017, 5:00pm 
 

S106 funding round now open 

We would welcome proposals for improving play areas and open spaces 
in those parts of the city where S106 funding is still available. Local 
groups can also apply for small-scale public art grants. Proposals are 
due in by 19 December 2016. 

Contact us: Developer contributions 

 s106@cambridge.gov.uk 
 01223 457313 

 

Full details of current consultations can be found on our website  

https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/current-consultations 

Please contact Democratic Services to add you community event to this 

page: Democrtic.services@cambridge.gov.uk   

 

Page 70

http://www.cambridge.gov.uk/current-consultations
mailto:s106@cambridge.gov.uk
mailto:Democrtic.services@cambridge.gov.uk

	Agenda
	3 To Confirm What was Said (Minutes) at the Last Meeting and What we Have Done (Action List)
	Minutes
	160915 COMMITTEE ACTION SHEET NAC -

	5 Policing & Safer Neighbourhoods
	North area profile December 2016 FINAL (4)
	Current Crime & ASB Incident Levels by Ward
	1 INTRODUCTION
	Aim
	Methodology

	2 CURRENT PRIORITIES
	4 ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
	CURRENT CRIME & ASB INCIDENT LEVELS BY WARD

	Objective
	Objective


	6 Environmental Reports
	7 Environmental Improvement Programme
	APPENDIX A - SUMMARY OF FEASIBLE EIP SCHEMES FOR 2016-17 - NORTH AREA - 2nd ROUND
	Sheet1

	APPENDIX C - PROGRESS OF EXISTING SCHEMES - NORTH AREA - NAC 15 Dec 2016
	Sheet1

	APPENDIX D - EIP ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA

	9 Community Events and Consultation Opportunities

